

State of New Jersey
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

PHILIP D. MURPHY
Governor

TAHESHA L. WAY
Lt. Governor

PO BOX 358
TRENTON, N.J. 08625-0358

www.nj.gov/health

JEFFREY A. BROWN
Acting Commissioner

In Re Licensure Violation:

Allendale Rehabilitation & Healthcare Center

(NJ Facility ID# NJ 60201)

1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
 10
 11
 12
 13
 14
 15
 16
 17
 18
 19
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 26
 27
 28
 29
 30
 31
 32
 33
 34
 35
 36
 37
 38
 39
 40
 41
 42
 43
 44
 45
 46
 47
 48
 49
 50
 51
 52
 53
 54
 55
 56
 57
 58
 59
 60
 61
 62
 63
 64
 65
 66
 67
 68
 69
 70
 71
 72
 73
 74
 75
 76
 77
 78
 79
 80
 81
 82
 83
 84
 85
 86
 87
 88
 89
 90
 91
 92
 93
 94
 95
 96
 97
 98
 99
 100
 101
 102
 103
 104
 105
 106
 107
 108
 109
 110
 111
 112
 113
 114
 115
 116
 117
 118
 119
 120
 121
 122
 123
 124
 125
 126
 127
 128
 129
 130
 131
 132
 133
 134
 135
 136
 137
 138
 139
 140
 141
 142
 143
 144
 145
 146
 147
 148
 149
 150
 151
 152
 153
 154
 155
 156
 157
 158
 159
 160
 161
 162
 163
 164
 165
 166
 167
 168
 169
 170
 171
 172
 173
 174
 175
 176
 177
 178
 179
 180
 181
 182
 183
 184
 185
 186
 187
 188
 189
 190
 191
 192
 193
 194
 195
 196
 197
 198
 199
 200
 201
 202
 203
 204
 205
 206
 207
 208
 209
 210
 211
 212
 213
 214
 215
 216
 217
 218
 219
 220
 221
 222
 223
 224
 225
 226
 227
 228
 229
 230
 231
 232
 233
 234
 235
 236
 237
 238
 239
 240
 241
 242
 243
 244
 245
 246
 247
 248
 249
 250
 251
 252
 253
 254
 255
 256
 257
 258
 259
 260
 261
 262
 263
 264
 265
 266
 267
 268
 269
 270
 271
 272
 273
 274
 275
 276
 277
 278
 279
 280
 281
 282
 283
 284
 285
 286
 287
 288
 289
 290
 291
 292
 293
 294
 295
 296
 297
 298
 299
 300
 301
 302
 303
 304
 305
 306
 307
 308
 309
 310
 311
 312
 313
 314
 315
 316
 317
 318
 319
 320
 321
 322
 323
 324
 325
 326
 327
 328
 329
 330
 331
 332
 333
 334
 335
 336
 337
 338
 339
 340
 341
 342
 343
 344
 345
 346
 347
 348
 349
 350
 351
 352
 353
 354
 355
 356
 357
 358
 359
 360
 361
 362
 363
 364
 365
 366
 367
 368
 369
 370
 371
 372
 373
 374
 375
 376
 377
 378
 379
 380
 381
 382
 383
 384
 385
 386
 387
 388
 389
 390
 391
 392
 393
 394
 395
 396
 397
 398
 399
 400
 401
 402
 403
 404
 405
 406
 407
 408
 409
 410
 411
 412
 413
 414
 415
 416
 417
 418
 419
 420
 421
 422
 423
 424
 425
 426
 427
 428
 429
 430
 431
 432
 433
 434
 435
 436
 437
 438
 439
 440
 441
 442
 443
 444
 445
 446
 447
 448
 449
 450
 451
 452
 453
 454
 455
 456
 457
 458
 459
 460
 461
 462
 463
 464
 465
 466
 467
 468
 469
 470
 471
 472
 473
 474
 475
 476
 477
 478
 479
 480
 481
 482
 483
 484
 485
 486
 487
 488
 489
 490
 491
 492
 493
 494
 495
 496
 497
 498
 499
 500
 501
 502
 503
 504
 505
 506
 507
 508
 509
 510
 511
 512
 513
 514
 515
 516
 517
 518
 519
 520
 521
 522
 523
 524
 525

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES

TO: Ms. Jean Monnecka- Administrator
Allendale Rehabilitation & Healthcare Center
85 Harreton Road
Allendale, New Jersey 07401
vchheda@allendalehc.com

Dear Ms. Monnecka:

Effective immediately, the Department of Health (hereinafter, "the Department") is assessing penalties pursuant to N.J.S.A. 26:2H-46.1 and N.J.A.C. 8:43E-3.4 upon Allendale Rehabilitation & Healthcare Center (hereinafter "Allendale" or "the Facility") because the Facility has incurred two or more of the same or substantially similar F-level or higher level deficiencies as defined by the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) within the prior three years. N.J.S.A. 26:2H-46.1 requires the Department to impose an increased penalty upon a licensed nursing home for violations within a three-year period of the same or a substantially similar F-level or higher-level deficiency. N.J.S.A. 26:2H-46.1 requires that an increased penalty be imposed for a repeat F-level violation that is cited at a survey or any other inspection conducted "pursuant to State or federal law or regulation,"

The Health Care Facilities Planning Act (N.J.S.A. 26:2H-1 et seq.) (the Act) provides a statutory scheme designed to ensure that all health care facilities are of the highest quality. Pursuant to the Act and N.J.A.C. 8:43E-1.1 et seq., General Licensure Procedures and Standards Applicable to All Licensed Facilities, the Commissioner of Health is authorized to inspect all health care facilities and to enforce the Standards for Licensure of Long-Term Care Facilities set forth at N.J.A.C. 8:39-1.1 et seq.

LICENSURE VIOLATIONS:

Based on surveys conducted by Department staff on November 25, 2025, June 21, 2024, and October 11, 2022, the Facility failed to comply with N.J.S.A. 30:13-18 (P.L. 2020. C. 112). N.J.S.A. 30:13-18 establishes minimum staffing requirements for nursing homes. N.J.S.A. 30:13-18 requires nursing homes to maintain the following minimum direct care staff -to-resident ratios: (1) one certified nurse aide (CNA) to every eight residents for the day shift; (2) one direct care staff member to every 10 residents for the evening shift, provided that no fewer than half of all staff members shall be CNAs, and each staff member shall be signed in to work as a CNA and shall perform CNA duties; and (3) one direct care staff member to every 14 residents for the night shift, provided that each direct care staff member shall sign in to work as a CNA and perform certified nurse aide duties.

The Department has determined that the staffing violations substantiated on November 25, 2025, June 21, 2024, and October 11, 2022, were F-level or higher deficiencies. The Facility's failure to comply with N.J.S.A. 30:13-18 at these surveys were F-level deficiencies because the violations were widespread and resulted in no actual harm with the potential for more than minimal harm that is not immediate jeopardy. 42 C.F.R. 488.404 (b) sets forth criteria for determining the seriousness of federal deficiencies. An F-level deficiency is a deficiency that results in no actual harm with a potential for more than minimal harm that is not immediate jeopardy, and the deficiency is widespread. 42 C.F.R. 488.404 (b) (1) (ii) and (2) (iii) and Nursing Home Compare Technical Users' Guide (cms.gov), p. 3.

The facility's violations of N.J.S.A. 30:13-18 were widespread because the November 25, 2025, survey substantiated that the Facility failed to comply with the nurse staffing requirements on twenty-nine different days (29 of 42-day shifts). The June 21, 2025, survey substantiated that the Facility failed to comply with the nurse staffing requirements on twenty-eight different days (28 of 28-day shifts, 3 of 14-evening shifts and 8 of 21-overnight shifts). The October 11, 2022, survey substantiated that the Facility failed to comply with the nurse staffing requirements on 11 different days (11 of 14-day shifts). At these surveys, the Survey staff reviewed the Nurse Staffing Reports completed by the facility for various weeks, which revealed staff-to-resident ratios that did not meet the minimum requirements. In addition to being widespread, these staffing violations also had the potential for more than minimal harm to residents throughout the facility.

Therefore, these violations of State law meet the federal criteria for F-level violations at 42 C.F.R. 488.404 (b) (1) (ii) and (2) (iii).

The facts supporting these deficiencies are set forth in surveys dated November 25, 2025, June 21, 2024, and October 11, 2022, which are incorporated herein by reference.

MONETARY PENALTIES:

N.J.A.C. 8:43E-3.4(a)8 allows the Department to impose a monetary penalty of \$1,000 per violation for each day noncompliance is found for multiple deficiencies related to patient care or physical plant standards throughout a facility, and/or where such violations represent a direct risk that a patient's physical or mental health will be compromised, or where an actual violation of a resident's or patient's rights is found.

Subsequent to the staffing deficiencies found at the October 11, 2022, survey, the November 25, 2025, and June 21, 2024, surveys substantiated that the facility failed to meet the requirements of N.J.S.A. 30:13-41 on fifty-seven different days.

In accordance with N.J.A.C. 8:43E-3.4(a)8, the penalty assessed for each day on which noncompliance was found is \$1,000 per day. The total penalty assessed for the violations on the surveys on November 25, 2025, and June 21, 2024, (or the days the facility was not in compliance) is **\$57,000 (57 days x \$1,000)**.

The total amount of this penalty is required to be paid within 30 days of receipt of this letter by certified check or money order made payable to the "Treasurer of the State of New Jersey" and forwarded to Office of Program Compliance, New Jersey Department of Health, P.O. Box 358, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0358, Attention: Lisa King. **On all future correspondence related to this Notice, please refer to Control X25334.**

INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (IDR):

N.J.A.C. 8:43E-2.3 provides facilities the option to challenge factual survey findings by requesting Informal Dispute Resolution with Department representatives. Facilities wishing to challenge only the assessment of penalties are not entitled to IDR review, but such facilities may request a formal hearing at the Office of Administrative Law as set forth herein below. Please note that the facility's rights to IDR and administrative hearings are not mutually exclusive and both may be invoked simultaneously. IDR requests **must be made in writing within ten (10) business days from receipt of this letter** and must state whether the facility opts for an in-person conference at the Department, a telephone conference, or review of facility documentation only. The request must include an original and ten (10) copies of the following:

1. The written survey findings;

2. A list of each specific deficiency the facility is contesting;
3. A specific explanation of why each contested deficiency should be removed; and
4. Any relevant supporting documentation.

Any supporting documentation or other papers submitted later than 10 business days prior to the scheduled IDR may not be considered at the discretion of the IDR panel.

Send the above-referenced information to:

Nadine Jackman
Office of Program Compliance
New Jersey Department of Health
P.O. Box 358
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0358

The IDR review will be conducted by professional Department staff who do not participate in the survey process. **Requesting IDR does not delay the imposition of any enforcement remedies.**

If IDR was offered and requested by your facility for the corresponding federal deficiency that was cited at the same survey and your facility requests another IDR for the corresponding State deficiency cited at the same survey and arising from the same set of facts, the Department will either consolidate the IDRs or treat the first IDR decision as binding. The Department does not offer a second IDR for the same set of disputed facts that were challenged in a prior IDR offered by the Department.

FORMAL HEARING:

The facility is entitled to contest the assessment of penalties pursuant to N.J.S.A. 26:2H-13, by requesting a formal hearing at the Office of Administrative Law (OAL). The facility may request a hearing to challenge any or all of the following: the factual findings and/or the assessed penalties. The facility must advise this Department within 30 days of the date of this letter if it requests an OAL hearing.

Please forward your OAL hearing request to:

Attention: OAL Hearing Requests
Office of Legal and Regulatory Compliance, New Jersey Department of Health
P.O. Box 360
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0360

Corporations are not permitted to represent themselves in OAL proceedings. Therefore, if the facility is owned by a corporation, representation by counsel is required. In the event of an OAL hearing regarding the penalty, the facility is further required to submit a written response to each and every charge as specified in this notice, which shall accompany its written request for a hearing.

Failure to submit a written request for a hearing within 30 days from the date of this notice will render this a final agency decision. The final agency order shall thereafter have the same effect as a judgment of the court. The Department also reserves the right to pursue all other remedies available by law.

Thank you for your attention to this important matter and for your anticipated cooperation. If you have any questions regarding this Notice of Assessment, please contact Nadine Jackman, Office of Program Compliance, at.

Sincerely,

A handwritten signature in black ink that reads "Lisa King/RSM". The signature is fluid and cursive, with the first name "Lisa" and last name "King" clearly legible, followed by a slash and the initials "RSM".

Lisa King, Program Manager
Office of Program Compliance
Division of Certificate of Need and Licensing

LK:RSM:nj
DATE: December 11, 2025
EMAIL: ycheda@allendalehc.com
REGULAR AND CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Control # X25334